
RFP 14-16   Solarize Northwest Indiana Pilot Program 
Question & Answer 

 
 
Q1: There is no possible way to install a 1 kW system for the same price per watt as a 15 kW 

system! This would assume that as an installer I could install fifteen 1 kW systems for the 
same price as one 15 kW system.  If it were just the pv modules, racking and inverter(s), then 
maybe. But you have to realize that there is balance of system components, namely conduit, 
wiring, disconnect switches, circuit breakers, etc... I need to install about the same value of 
this equipment-labor included, for the 1 kW as the 15 kW. This means the price per watt on 
the 1 kW system is much higher than the 15 kW. Now if you can break that installation cost 
into two parts, one price per kW for the solar equipment and then add a separate cost for 
balance of system components and installation, then you have something an installer can 
work with. 

 
A1: The Tiers pricing structure for a Solarize is based on the TOTAL project Kilowatts installed as a 

result of enrollments during the project period.  That means if at the end of the sign-up and 
commitment period, the Installer has contracted for 10 5KW systems, the total Solarize project 
has 50KW capacity installed, the price for all will be the price in the Tier that included 50kW.  If 
things go badly and we only get say 3 5kW systems, then we will be in Tier I with 15 kW, 
everyone gets that price per watt, which should be the most expensive one.   If by some chance 
we get 50 systems, then we would have 250 kW and be in the lowest price /kW Tier.   

  
Q2: We're licensed individually in Illinois both as a general contractors, roofers and solar installers 

but we don't have any licenses in Indiana.  Does this excludes us from participating in this 
proposal? 

 
A2: Section 3.4 of the Evaluation Criteria was in error. The State of Indiana does not 

license general contractors, roofers, or solar Installers.  Each local government 
jurisdiction has its own requirements for general contractor and electrician 
registration or licensing.  Some may require that an electrician test be taken to 
obtain local licensing.   Because the targeted municipalities have not been 
selected for the Solarize project yet, not having these will not disqualify any 
applicant.      

  
Q3: We have taken the test for a NABCEP this past fall but we don't have the results yet.  Does this 

disqualify us? 
A3: NABCEP certification is not required.  While those with certification may score higher on some 

criteria, those without will not be excluded from consideration.  
 
Q4: All of our work have been done in Illinois and Wisconsin.  Is that a ground for being 

disqualified? 
 
A4: Lack of Indiana experience is not a disqualifying factor.  Experience in the Indiana, the 

Chicago Metro Region, and the Midwest generally will score better due to concerns 
about knowledge of weather and other relevant conditions. 

 



Q5: We don't provide financing, is that a grounds for being disqualified? 
 
A5: This is not a requirement of the selected installer.  Experience with helping customers 

identify funding sources or solar friendly lenders based on your experience, or providing 
other types of support in this area could be helpful.    

 
Q6:  I would also suggest that you consider qualifying more than just one company. 
 
A6: NIRPC has not ruled out selecting multiple installers, however we are concerned how this could 

affect the cost benefits attained through quantity of installations.   If multiple contractors are 
selected, we will negotiate an agreed total price tier structure that will apply to all. 
 

Q7:  How does NIRPC plan to promote the program pre-launch and through the sign-up phase? 
 
A7:  NIRPC anticipates doing paid advertising, social media promotion, and press releases.  In 

addition we will work with the selected communities to hold local workshops, and the 
communities will be required to promote the program to residents.   NIRPC can also work with 
the installer on print materials to be distributed to potential customers.   We would like the 
installer to assist us with content development based on their experience and to be consistent 
with their own materials 

 
Q8: What level of information will satisfy the requirement for references?  Is name and contact 

information sufficient, or would you need information about the system installed for each of 
the references? (technical spec’s, photos, etc.) 

 
A8: Contact information and a very brief, one or two sentence, description of the size, type, and 

location of installation should be sufficient. 
 
Q9: As a general rule, we have tended to avoid selection of hardware by price alone.  It seems by 

the scoring criteria that there will be some effort made to assess quality of the system 
hardware installed in addition to price.  Is there any quantifiable scale that will be used to 
make a trade-off between premium equipment and warranty, for instance, and low hardware 
prices? 

 
A9: Proposals will be scored on a variety of criteria including quality and price.  NIRPC will have 

technical consultants review the quality of hardware proposed for use.   We would suggest 
offering a standard system that would be the basis for the overall pricing Tiers, but if desired a 
premium hardware option could be included in the Price Contingency portion of the application 
as an available upgrade for additional cost.  

  
Q10:  The relationship between the tiered pricing and customer communication is not clear.  If you 

could provide a description of how the pricing will be communicated over a period of time to 
the potential purchasers as they sign up, that would be helpful.  For example, is it envisioned 
that the total number of committed systems will be known by the July 15th date, so that 
highest-volume tier of pricing will be given to each customer?  We assume customer contacts 
be made as applications are received at the start of the sign-up window.   Will the first 
customers in the sign-up window be quoted a price of the lowest volume tier, and later 
customers be quoted a lower price?   



 
 
 
A10:  Marketing materials and the project website will communicate overall base pricing tiers as well 

as potential additional contingency costs, examples might include local permitting fees,  
electrical upgrades,  etc.   There will be a drop dead date for enrollment.  Customer contracts 
written prior to the end of the contracting deadline can be written with “Not to exceed” pricing 
language based on the highest price tier.   NIRPC will provide an on-line tracker showing 
enrollment, kW committed and price tier status so that customers can be aware of pricing in 
real time.  This will provide an incentive for customers to market the program to others, thus 
bringing their own prices down.    

 
 
Q11: Will (or may) any installations occur while the sign-up window is still open? (this is perhaps 

related to the previous question) 
 
A11: Installations may occur while the sign-up window is still open at the discretion of the Installer 

and the customer, so long as there is a mechanism in place for the customer to obtain the final 
project tier pricing.  

 
Q12: Although you have not finalized your list of cities, is it known how many different utility 

company service territories will be involved?  Do the utilities have any involvement in or 
awareness of the program? 

 
A12: There are two utility companies servicing NIRPCs jurisdiction.  The Northern Indiana Public 

Services Company (NIPSCO) and the Kankakee Valley REMC (KVREMC).   NIPSCO has been an 
active participant in the Solar Ready NWI advisory committee and NIPSCO staff may also 
participate in the proposal technical review.   
 
 NIPSCO’s net metering, interconnect guidelines, and other information is available here: 
https://www.nipsco.com/our-services/selling-your-clean-energy  

  
 KVREMC’s wind and solar interconnect program information is available here:  

http://www.kvremc.com/wind-solar-energy-interconnection/ 
 
 
Q13: For project-related cost add-ons, it may not be possible to express all costs in $/W, especially  

soft costs.  For example, a Porter County structural engineering analysis for a roof permit will 
cost the same independent of the size of the system.  Is it acceptable to express these costs 
separately?   

 
A13: Common potential project related cost add-ons, such as the Porter County structural 

engineering analysis example provided, or others that the Installer has experienced should be 
outlined in the Pricing Contingencies portion of the proposal.    

 
Q14: If a cost element does not apply uniformly across the entire geographic region (like the 

inspection above), how should that be communicated in the proposal? 
 

https://www.nipsco.com/our-services/selling-your-clean-energy
http://www.kvremc.com/wind-solar-energy-interconnection/


A14: See Q13 above.  
 
Q15: Will submitted proposals be considered confidential, or under any non-disclosure 

agreement?  Will any other installation companies have access to the details in the proposals 
submitted other than their own?  To submit a thorough proposal, significant commercial 
strategy will have to be shared, which most companies treat as confidential information. 

 
A15: NIRPC is subject to Indiana Access to Public Records Act I.C. §§5-14-3-1 et seq. This law requires 

guaranteed public access to all information created, maintained, or filed by government 
agencies.   This law does provide exemptions for trade secrets and confidential information 
received upon request.   More information is available at http://www.nfoic.org/indiana-foia-
laws 

 
 NIRPC is funded for this project under a grant from the U.S. Department of Energy SunShot, 

Rooftop Solar Challenge.  As a result we are also following U.S DOE procurement rules relating 
to receipt of proposals and information.  48 CFR Ch.9 provides for protection of information in 
proposals to the extent permitted by law.  More information on this provision is available at  
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2007-title48-vol5/pdf/CFR-2007-title48-vol5-sec915-207-
70.pdf 

 
NIRPC does anticipate that all information in the proposals will be shared with the Solar Ready 
Advisory Group for purposes of technical evaluation.  Area Installers will not be part of that 
technical evaluation to ensure fair competition. 

  
Q16: Since there are unions in this area would all jobs need to be prevailing wage, also would 

government job need to be prevailing wage? 
 
A16: The question is correct that there are unions in this area.  However, no federal funding will be 

utilized for actual solar installations, so Davis-Bacon prevailing wage rules do not apply.   
 
Q17: If our work schedule becomes too busy, would we be able to contract the install out? 
 
A17: Qualifications of potential sub-contractors should be included in the original proposal so that 

they can be reviewed by the committee.  
 
Q18: Do we physically have to do site evaluation? 
 
A18: Initial contact with enrolled customers could occur based on on-line review of their location.  

However, prior to entering into a final customer contract, we expect that a physical on-site 
evaluation will have occurred to determine any necessary price contingencies such as electrical 
upgrades.  

 
Q19: Are we going to be given information on local utility companies? I.E. Rates, net metering, 

and guidelines. 
 
A19: See Q12 above   
 

http://www.nfoic.org/indiana-foia-laws
http://www.nfoic.org/indiana-foia-laws
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2007-title48-vol5/pdf/CFR-2007-title48-vol5-sec915-207-70.pdf
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2007-title48-vol5/pdf/CFR-2007-title48-vol5-sec915-207-70.pdf


Q20: Do the leads come straight to our company?  How is it decided which company gets each 
lead?    

 
A20: Companies may receive leads directly, or leads received via the project website.  Potential 

customers who enroll in the project website will be passed through to Installers.   If multiple 
installers are selected, NIRPC will negotiate a lead distribution mechanism based on negotiations 
with the selected installers and participating communities.  

 
Q21: For the community incentive, do we get to choose what building/company to put solar on? 

We would like to be able to put solar on schools. 
 

A21: NIRPC would like to hear the recommendations of the bidding installers as to what incentives 
they prefer or think might work best to entice local government support.  The incentive is for 
the municipality, so a public location such as a school seems like it could be an attractive 
incentive, but other ideas are welcome.   Ideally the incentive would be somehow tied to the 
communities’ efforts to obtain enrollees.   

 
Q22: Should our financing program be included in all our quotes when doing the breakdown for 

the system sizes?  Or should the financing program be in the Price Contingencies? 
 

A22: Please provide a description of the financing programs you have, broken down by system size 
in your proposal.  This description would fit either under “Optional propose a financing 
partner” or under your “Program Plan” description.    Costs of financing packages should be 
included in Price Contingencies, rather than the overall base quote, maintaining the flexibility 
of customers to obtain other financing.   

 
Q23: How much advertising will be done for this program?  Will we be expected to help with any of 

the advertising cost? 
 

A23:  See Q10. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 


